

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL VISITOR SAFETY OFFICERS GVB RFP NO. 2017-008



GUAM VISITORS BUREAU				
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL VISITOR SAFETY OFFICERS				
RFP Number:	RFP Title:			
01/5 555 110 0047 000		Request for Proposal for		
GVB RFP NO. 2017-008		VISITOR SAFETY OFFICERS		
RFP Due Date and Time:				
		Number of Pages: 46; including required affidavits		
September 11, 2017; 5:0	0 p.m.	and forms.		
IS	SUING AGENO	CY INFORMATION		
CHAMAVICITODO DUDEALI		January Destay Assessed Od. 20047		
GUAM VISITORS BUREAU		Issue Date: August 21, 2017		
		401 Pale San Vitores Road		
Mr. Jon Nathan Deni		Tumon, Guam 96913		
President and CEC)	Phone: (671) 646-5278		
		Fax: (671) 646-8861		
		Website: <u>www.guamvisitorsbureau.com</u>		
	NSTRUCTIONS	TO OFFERORS		
DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL		MARK FACE OF ENVELOPE/PACKAGE:		
By U.S. Mail or Deliver Only to the	e attention of:	VISITOR SAFETY OFFICERS		
Mar Jan Nathan Dan	: a.la.t	RFP Number: GVB RFP No. 2017-008		
Mr. Jon Nathan Den		RFP Due Date: September 11, 2017; 5:00 p.m.		
President and CEO Guam Visitors Bureau		Tit i Bue Bute. Geptember 11, 2017, 0.00 p.m.		
401 Pale San Vitores Road		SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:		
Tumon, Guam 96913		Mark "Confidential RFP Document" on envelope		
		and in accordance with Section 1.7 of the RFP		
u upos				
		RMS AND CONDITIONS IPLETE THE FOLLOWING		
OFFEROR NAME/MAILING ADDRESS:	one meet een	AUTHORIZED OFFEROR SIGNATORY:		
		(7)		
OFFEROR TITLE:		(Please print name and sign in ink) OFFEROR EMAIL ADDRESS:		
OTTEROR TITLE.		OT EROR EMAIL ADDRESS.		
OFFEROR TELEPHONE NUMBER:		OFFEROR FAX NUMBER:		
OFFERORS MUST RETURN THIS COVER SHEET WITH RFP RESPONSE				



TABLE OF CONTENTS

			PAGE
		OR'S RFP CHECKLIST	
S	CHED	DULE OF EVENTS	
S	ECTIO	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	1.0	Background and Intent	8
	1.1	Scope of Work	
	1.2	RFP Process	
	1.3	RFP Submission Criteria	21
	1.4	Requests for Clarification	21
	1.5	Schedule of Events	22
	1.6	RFP Closing Date	
	1.7	Delivery of Proposals	
	1.8	Offeror's Responsibilities	22
	1.9	Conflict of Interest	23
		Certificates	
		Presentations by Offerors	
	1.12	Award	23
	1.13	Records and Right to Audit	23
		Offeror's Personnel	
		Termination / Cancellation of Contract	
		Independent Contractor Relationship	
		Assignment/Subcontract	
		Governing Laws	
		Indemnification of GVB	
		Modifications Due to Public Welfare or Change in Law	
		Force Majeure	
		Confidential or Proprietary Information	
_		Submission of Fee(s)	27
S	ECTIC		
	2.0	Evaluation Process	
	2.1	Evaluation Committee	
	2.2	Evaluation Criteria and Scale	
_	2.3	Investigation and Rejection	
S	ECTIC		
	3.0	Defined Terms	
	3.1	Type of Procurement	
	3.2	Language of Proposal	
	3.3	Familiarity with Laws	
	3.4	Signature on Proposal	
	3.5	Currencies of Proposal and Payment	
	3.6	Modification or Withdrawal of Proposals	
	3.7	Receipt, Opening and Recording of Proposals	
	3.8	Evaluations and Discussions	
	3.9	Negotiation and Award of Contract	
	3.10		
	3.11		
	ა. ୲∠	Cancellation of Solicitation; Delays	



	Disqualification of Proponent	
3.14	Right to Reject Proposal	34
3.15	Award of Contract	34
3.16	Execution of Contract	34
3.17	Addenda	34
3.18	Invoicing And Payment Terms And Conditions	34
3.19	Taxes	35
3.20	Licensing	34
3.21	Disclosure of Major Shareholders	34
3.22	Local and Veteran Procurement Preference	35
3.23	Non-Collusion Affidavit and Conflict of Interest Disclosures	35
3.24	Restrictions Against Contractors Employing Sex Offenders from Working at	
	Government of Guam Venues	
3.25	Compliance with Wage Law	36
3.26	Gratuities and kickbacks	36
	Contingent Fees	
3.28	Representation Regarding Ethical Standards	37
3.29	Condition of Contract	37
3.30	Contact for Contract Negotiation	37
3.31	Notice of Awards	37
APPEN	IDIX A Affidavits 1-7	38
EODM	No. 4	16



OFFEROR'S RFP CHECKLIST

The 10 Most Critical Things to Keep in Mind When Responding to an RFP for GVB

1.	 Read the <u>entire</u> document. Note critical items such as: mandatory requirements; supplies/services required; submittal dates; number of copies required for submittal; contract requirements.
2.	 Note the procurement officer's name, address, phone numbers and e-mail address. This is the only person you are allowed to communicate with regarding the RFP and is an excellent source of information for any questions you may have.
3.	 Attend the pre-proposal conference if one is offered. These conferences provide an opportunity to ask clarifying questions, obtain a better understanding of the project, or to notify GVB of any ambiguities, inconsistencies, or errors in the RFP.
4.	 Take advantage of the "question and answer" period. Submit your written questions to the procurement officer by the due date listed in the Schedule of Events and view the answers given. Should an addendum be required, GVB will issue a formal "addendum" for the RFP. All addenda issued for an RFP are posted on GVB's website.
5.	 Follow the format required in the RFP when preparing your response. Provide point-by-point responses to all sections in a clear and concise manner.
6.	 Provide complete answers/description. Read and answer all questions and requirements. Don't assume GVB or evaluation committee will know what your company capabilities are or what items/services you can provide, even if you have previously contracted with GVB. The proposals are evaluated based solely on the information and materials provided in your response.
7.	 Use the forms provided, i.e., cover page, "ALL" Affidavit forms, etc.
8.	 Check the GVB website for RFP addenda. Before submitting your response, check the GVB website at www.guamvisitorsbureau.com to see whether any addenda were issued for the RFP. If so, you must submit a signed copy of the addendum for each addendum issued along with your RFP response.
9.	 Review and read the RFP document again to make sure that you have addressed all requirements. Your original response and the requested copies must be identical and be complete. The copies are provided to the evaluation committee members and will be used to score your response.
10.	 Submit your response on time. Note all the dates and times listed in the Schedule of Events and within the document, and be sure to submit all required items on time. Late proposal responses are <i>never</i> accepted.

This checklist is provided for assistance only and should not be submitted with the Offeror's Response.



SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

VISITOR SAFETY OFFICERS

GVB RFP 2017-008

<u>DATE</u> <u>EVENT</u>

August 21, 2017 (MON)

RFP Issue Date/Public Announcement
RFP packets available at GVB website or

GVB office at 401 Pale San Vitores, Road, Tumon.

August 28, 2017 (MON) 5:00 p.m. - Deadline to submit written questions*

*GVB response will be provided directly to all registered participants via email and posted on

www.guamvisitorsbureau.com.

September 11, 2017 (MON) 5:00 p.m. - RFP submission deadline



VISITOR SAFETY OFFICERS

The Guam Visitors Bureau (GVB), a public non-stock, non-profit, membership corporation, issues this Request for Proposal ("RFP") soliciting proposals from businesses ("Offeror") to provide a concierge service for tourists and visitors in the Tumon area, working closely with the Guam Police Department to establish a visible presence of security and assistance for our tourists along San Vitores Road and beach areas. This solicitation is entitled **VISITOR SAFETY OFFICERS.**

Request for Proposal (RFP) packages may be obtained at the GVB's Main Office, in Tumon, Guam, anytime from Monday through Friday, excluding Guam holidays, between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. The RFP may also be downloaded at the Guam Visitors Bureau's website at www.guamvisitorsbureau.com.

A **non-refundable US\$25.00 fee** is required for each USB Packet picked up at the GVB office. Methods of acceptable payment to the Bureau are:

- 1) US\$ Cash
- 2) Bank Wire Transfer
- 3) Major Credit Card Visa, MC, Discover, JCB

GVB hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract entered into pursuant to this solicitation, minority business enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit a response to this request for proposal and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for an award.

The right is reserved to reject any or all proposals or bids, waive any imperfection in the bid proposal or cancel this solicitation all according to law in the interest of GVB.

If you are interested in submitting an offer for GVB RFP 2017-008 VISITOR SAFETY OFFICERS, please send your proposal to: Jon Nathan Denight, President and CEO, Guam Visitors Bureau, 401 Pale San Vitores Road, Tumon, Guam 96913. Deadline for submission of all proposals is 5:00 p.m. (Guam Time) on Monday, September 11, 2017.

/s/ JON NATHAN DENIGHT President and CEO



SECTION 1

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS OVERVIEW

1.0 Background and Intent

Tourism is the largest single private sector contributor to Guam's economy, representing \$1.2 billion annually in island revenues and supporting approximately a third of island employment.

The Guam Visitors Bureau has a vested interest in protecting and ensuring the safety and security of all visitors. The increase in crimes against tourists in Tumon threatens Guam's image as a safe, family-friendly destination, and has had a negative impact on Guam's number one industry. If ignored, the effects on the local economy would be devastating and lead to a loss of jobs and government tax revenue.

Guam and our tourism industry parties have been supporting the Guam Police Department (GPD) throughout the years; however, despite this assistance, GPD's Tumon Precinct is undermanned and does not have the personnel to provide the police presence needed in Tumon.

GVB instituted the Visitors Safety Officers (VSO) Pilot Program in 2014 to address this issue and the feedback received on the VSO presence since then was crucial in the determination to continue this much-needed program in Tumon.

It is important to note that the VSO program is not intended to replace GPD in any way. The VSO program purpose is to supplement and support GPD's mission in Tumon. GVB will work closely with GPD to determine the VSO's patrol schedule and area, maximizing the effectiveness of the program. Also, with the VSO handling minor infractions and incidents, GPD will be able to focus on major crimes and public safety issues.

1.1 Scope of Work

- A. INITIAL CONTRACT DELIVERABLES. Specifically, the successful contractor will be asked to:
 - (1) Post Orders.

Within fifteen (15) Days of the Effective Date, Contractor shall deliver to GVB comprehensive Post Orders for all designated SITES for GVB to review and return same to Contractor with instructions for revisions. Contractor will prepare completed and approved Post Orders and submit them GVB within (10) days of receipt of GVB revisions. Final Post Orders approved by GVB are incorporated by reference and shall become part of the Contract as though fully set forth. Post orders shall include, but are not limited to:

- (a) General Safety Procedures
- (b) Emergency Procedures (including contact lists)
- (c) Investigation, Incident and Emergency Report Procedures and Forms



- (d) Shift Patrol Procedures
- (e) Communication Procedures
- (f) Dress and Grooming Standards
- (g) Training Procedures including harassment training
- (h) Photographs and diagrams of each Site
- (i) Human Resource Policies and Hiring and Disciplinary Procedures
- (j) Templates for required reports

(2) List of Assigned Guards.

Contractor, prior to any work must furnish GVB with a complete list of all VSO's assigned, their assignment and a copy of their application for employment. Records of criminal convictions, driving history, parking citations, military service, education and prior employment must be check by Contractor prior to the assignment of any VSO's.

(3) Training Plan.

No later than ten (10) DAYS after Effective Date, Contractor shall provide GVB with a draft Training Plan consisting of the following:

- (a) Security Guard Training
- (b) Tour Guide Training
- (c) Proof of Training

GVB shall review and return the draft Training Plan to Contractor with any instructions for revisions. Contractor shall deliver the completed Training Plan to GVB for its approval prior to the commencement of training required by this Contract. The final approved Training Plan is incorporated by reference and shall become part of the Agreement as though fully set forth herein.

(4) Proposed Uniform Design.

Contractor shall submit proposed VSO uniform designs to GVB or approval within ten (10) Days of the contract start date.

(5) Supervisor Contact List.

Contractor shall provide a contact list with 24-hour contact information (cell phone, pager, etc.) for all Supervisors.

(6) Proposed form of Emergency Report.

Contractor shall provide a proposed form of Emergency Report for GVB approval.

(7) Report Templates.

Upon the Effective Date, Contractor shall provide to GVB templates for all reports that are required by this Contract (Emergency Reports, Training Reports, Incident Reports, Guard Timesheets, Lost/Stolen Item Reports, a Daily Security Report (DSR), Radio Logs, armed Guard Daily Report, Observer Reports, monthly invoice, and an Excel matrix of Planned/Unplanned Scheduled of Events to track date/time, location, number of guards, hours of service, etc.) for GVB



approval. The final approved report templates are incorporated by reference and shall become part of the Agreement as though fully set forth herein.

B. CONTRACTOR DUTIES

(1) General Visitor Safety Officer Duties.

The Contractor shall provide and supervise VSO's to provide Services for all shifts and Sites for which VSOs are required by this Contract or requested by GVB. Contractor shall make best efforts to assign VSOs consistently to certain Sites so that VSOs become familiar with the procedures and authorized persons associated with that Site. VSOs shall be provided to perform the following duties at all Sites in accordance with the Standard Operating Procedures unless otherwise provided in the Contract of as instructed by GVB.

- (a) Protect the safety of persons on the Regular Sites Locations Determined by GVB:
 - i. Pale San Vitores Road, Tumon
 - ii. Hilton Intersection Beach Bar
 - iii. Westin Hotel / Pacific Place intersection north hill to Marine Drive)
 - iv. Farenholt Road to Sheraton Hotel
 - v. Hagatna Bay Beach North Governor Carlos Camacho Road (Jimmy Dee Beach Bar to Sheraton Hotel)
 - vi. Matapang beach park Contractor shall provide for one (1) extra personnel to provide water safety security daily from 9:00AM 6PM; seven (7) days weekly, including holidays, totally (63) hours weekly, along the beaches and in the water.
 - vii. Joseph Flores Memorial Park Contractor shall provide for one (1) extra personnel to provide water safety security daily from 9:00AM 6PM; seven (7) days weekly, including holidays, totally (63) hours weekly, along the beaches and in the water.
 - viii. Tumon Bay Beach visitor safety presence from the hours of 10:00PM – 6:00AM with eight (8) random supervisory patrol checks, Monday through Sunday, including holidays.
- (b) Maintain sound public relations in an effort to promote Guam as a safe a vacation destination.
- (c) VSOs cannot be expected to speak all the major languages Guam services (Japanese, Korean, Mandarin and Russian); therefore, the VSO vendor must provide a solution to train VSOs with the basic language tools to be able to communicate to our foreign language speaking visitors and/or have access to a call center that can provide



- translation services to the VSOs, similar to what Customs and Border Patrol does at the Guam International Airport.
- (d) Inform, assist and educate visitors of basic knowledge and Information (which include laws and regulations in accordance to Guam laws).
- (e) Prevent and minimize fire, theft, and trespass on all Sites directed by GVB.
- (f) Report unusual incidents, suspicious persons or activities or conditions within the Site locations, determined upon the Contract on a daily basis to GVB – Project Manager; Matapang Koban officer; Frankie Smith station officers, and Contractor.
- (g) Supports and cooperates with local law enforcement authorities and reports to assigned call center as determined by GVB. Provides assistance to members of public safety agencies within the Regular Sites determined by this Contract to perform in their official capacities.
- (h) Pro-actively patrols the streets and beaches of Tumon (via preferred and determined modes of transportation upon what is determined by Contractor and approved by GVB) as a deterrent to criminal activity against our visitors and local people.
- (i) Maintain high visibility during patrol.
- (j) Provides initial emergency medical care until the appropriate medical care arrives at the scene and/or exercises supervisory authority at the scene of an emergency situation until the arrival of emergency supervisory personnel.
- (k) Maintain a daily log for each shift in accordance with all policies for the Sites.
- (I) Complete rounds of assigned Sites.
- (m) Maintain log of all security violations and report occurrences to Supervisor as quickly as possible considering the nature of the violation.
- (n) Be familiar with and implement procedures and protocols for responding to medical emergencies, bomb threats, riots, fires, earthquakes, hazardous spills, floods and other emergencies.
- (o) Guards shall not use cell phones except to perform their duties, and may not use or be in possession of any personal electronic devices or reading materials not related to Guard duties at a site.



- (p) Guards shall, at all times, be polite, courteous, respectful, and responsive to any person authorized to be on Site.
- (q) Guards shall not be engaged in our conduct any personal business or business outside those described in this Contract at any time while assigned to perform Services except for authorized breaks.
- (r) Guards shall comply with all FCC rules and regulations when using radio frequency, radio base station and handheld radio equipment.

C. UNIFORMS

(1) Uniforms to be Supplied and Maintained.

Contractor must furnish and maintain all uniform items for all Guards provided to perform the Services by this Contract, including outdoor clothing appropriate for the weather and season, with necessary safety clothing and equipment. All Guards must wear a complete uniform of the type required by this Section at all times while on duty. When reporting for duty, Guards shoes must be presentable, all uniform items must fit well and be cleaned and pressed and must generally present a professional image to the public. The Contractor shall be responsible for the cleaning, pressing, and repair costs for all uniforms.

(2) Uniform Design.

All Officers shall wear the same color and style of uniform. Uniform design shall be a professional, friendly and easily identifiable uniform subject to the approval of GVB. Any changes to uniform design or color required by GVB shall be made at no cost to GVB.

Shoulder patches with GVB brand logo shall be worn on the uniforms left shoulder. No other Contractor identification is to be worn or displayed on the uniform. A lettered breast badge and cap ornament displaying the Contractor's name and GVB Brand logo shall also be worn. Uniform color, style, and design need to be in compliance with the guidelines of the GVB Brand.

(3) Uniform Items.

Contractor shall issue uniforms to all Officers, which must include, at a minimum, the following items:

- (a) Shirts (long and short sleeve)
- (b) Shorts
- (c) Black Garrison style belt
- (d) Cap
- (e) Rain gear in bright yellow or orange with "VSO" printed on back



- (f) Name plate, gold or silver (over left breast pocket with badge number, first initial and last name) and an issued photo I.D. badge
- (g) GVB logo Visitors Safety Patrol shoulder patch
- (h) Black shoes or boots
- D. EQUIPMENT (Minimum Requirement)
 - (1) Flashlight and batteries
 - (2) Flashlight holder, black, ring or snap style
 - (3) Radio holder black
 - (4) Expandable baton (if required by GVB)
 - (5) Expandable baton holder black (if required)
 - (6) Whistle (thunder type) with chain attachment
 - (7) Approved chemical agent (subject to prior approval of use of chemical agents by Federal law)
 - (8) Body armor to the extent determined necessary by Contractor
 - (9) Vehicles for Field Supervisors
 - (a) Transportation vehicle for Officers (must be mobile; small; can operate through tight spaces, beach or sidewalk. Examples are segways, mopeds, motorcycles; mules to be determined by Contractors and approved by GVB.
 - (10) Cellular telephones for all Officers on duty
 - (11) All other equipment determined by Contractor and approved by GVB necessary to the successful performance of the Services

E. SITES

(1) Requested Locations
Contractor shall provide armed and unarmed Officers at any location within designated Sites within twenty – four (24) hours of GVB request.

(2) Regular Locations
Contractor shall provide VSO Services at the following areas in accordance with
the schedule set forth in Exhibit A. GVB reserves the right during the term of
Agreement to add Sites or eliminate any Site.



- (a) Pale San Vitores Road
- (b) Tumon Beach Beach and Public Parks (Governor Joseph Flores Park, Matapang beach Park, Gun Beach)
- (c) Farenholt to Sheraton
- (d) Governor Carlos Camacho Road to Onward
- (e) Hagatna Bay Beach North (Jimmy Dee to Sheraton)

F. PERSONNEL

(1) Contractor Responsible for Personnel

Contractor shall provide adequate number of trained and qualified personnel to fully staff all posts for all locations for which VSO Services are required to be provided by this Contract. All VSOs must be employees of the Contractor. Hiring, training, and payment of wages and benefits, uniforms, equipment, supervision, transportation costs, direction and discharge of VSO shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. The payment to federal and local taxes and all wages shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. Contractor is responsible for complying with all required federal and local employment laws and regulations. GVB may request Contractor to remove any VSO from its premises at any time it desires and for any reason.

(2) Removal without Cause

GVB may request Contractor to remove any VSO from performing Services under this Contract at any time it desires and for any reason. Contractor shall remove and replace personnel within 24 hours when requested by GVB.

(3) Removal with Cause

Contractor shall remove and replace a VSO within 30 minutes of GVB request for any cause or condition that renders the VSO incapable of performing their duties, which shall include but is not limited to:

- (a) Sleeping on duty
- (b) Theft
- (c) Alcohol or illegal drug use

Contractor shall remove and replace personnel within 24 hours for other violations or performance failures set forth in the Agreement when requested by GVB.

(4) Reassignment, Augmentation, Reduction of workforce Within five (5) Days of GVB request, Contractor shall reassign VSOs, and such reassignment shall be at no cost to GVB. If GVB's need for Services increases



or decreases the number of VSOs required to fulfill this Contract, GVB's cost shall be based on actual hours of Services provided at the billing rates set forth in this Contract.

- (5) Qualified Employees Employees hired as VSOs shall possess the following skills and abilities:
 - (a) VSO's shall have the ability to speak, read, write understand and properly use documents written in English.
 - (b) Contractor shall communicate all written materials provided by GVB to VSOs, including rules, procedures, regulations, guidelines and instructions, and shall ensure that VSOs adhere to the standards set forth in such materials.
 - (c) Each and every VSO provided under this Contract shall have the minimum qualifications required for the position for which he/she is provided as set forth herein, to include a valid Guam's driver's license. GVB may require proof of such qualification at any time from either the VSO or Contractor.
 - (d) VSOs must be at least twenty-one (21) years of age. This requirement may be waived for veterans of military service with the written approval of GVB.
 - (e) One year experience or GVB approved training in a position requiring the use of interpersonal / communication skills / public relations.
 - (f) Must be knowledgeable of Guam public safety laws.
 - (g) Ability to demonstrate physical and psychological fitness.
 - (h) Ability to work any of the shifts, or for a specific period of time to meet with the needs of the industry.
 - (i) Familiar with electronic surveillance equipment and computer systems such as Microsoft Outlook; Word; Excel and Access.
 - (j) The following persons are not qualified to work as a VSO:
 - i. Persons with a felony(s) or serious misdemeanor conviction(s) during the last five years.
 - ii. Persons presently on probation or parole.
 - iii. Guards removed for cause at any time during this Agreement.
 - iv. Guards who not possess the required certifications or training specified in this Agreement.
 - (k) Should any employee be found unqualified for the position to which he/she is assigned, Contractor shall remove such employee



- immediately and provide a replacement within four (4) hours at no additional cost to GVB.
- (I) GVB shall not pay for any Service provided by Contractor's employees who do not meet the qualifications set for the herein. In the event that GVB discovers, at any time, that it has paid the Contractor for Services provided by an unqualified employee of the Contractor, the Contractor shall refund any such payment to GVB within ten (10) business days of notification by GVB. GVB may, at its option, deduct an equal amount from any payment due or become due to the Contractor under this Agreement or any other agreement.

G. TYPES OF SERVICES.

- (1) Field Supervisor Contractor shall provide one (1) Supervisor, whose primary responsibilities shall be to:
 - (a) Respond to all dispatch requests by GPD or VSO for any alarms. When requested, or when there is an incident that requires such response, the field supervisor shall meet with the GPD and/or GVB staff at the location. The Field Supervisor must remain in contact with GPD and GVB while in patrol using a hand held radio or cell phone device, to be provided by Contractor.
 - (b) Prior to shift change, determine the readiness of VSOs preparing to be posted and ensure adequate number of properly uniformed and equipped with VSOs are available for the shift.
 - (c) Communicate any changes in post assignments or procedures, any special instruction, announcements, or any other pertinent information that may affect security operations.
 - (d) Shall be available at all times during their shift to receive and implement orders or special instructions from GVB concerning matters which affect the operation and security of Site locations.
 - (e) Shall instruct VSO's as to their daily duties at the beginning of each shift.
 - (f) Shall staff a VSO post in emergencies not to exceed two (2) hours in any consecutive eight (8) hour period, unless the requirement is waived by GVB. An Emergency report shall be submitted to GVB by the Supervisor no later than the next business day after the emergency.
- (2) Contract Security Administrative Support
 Contractor shall provide all necessary administrative support to manage
 Contractor's VSOs; to prepare reports, compile statistics and provide information
 as requested by GVB. Contractor shall provide one (1) administrative employee,



to be stationed between the hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. at a location to be determined by GVB.

(3) As-Needed and Emergency Guard Service In addition to requested scheduled Services, Contractor shall provide As-Needed VSO service shall be paid at the regular fee. GVB does anticipate the As-Needed VSO Service.

Contractor may be asked to provide for the Emergency VSO Service. Contractor shall provide an Emergency VSO within 30 minutes of GVB request. Contractor may charge an emergency rate for the first four (4) hours of services only. After the first four (4) hours, the rate of pay will revert to regular rates.

- (4) Account Manager Contractor shall provide an Account Manager whose primary responsibilities shall be to:
 - (a) Coordinate Contract Services.
 - (b) Manage the GVB account and responding to all GVB requests for additional Services or any other GVB concern regarding staffing or VSO issues.
 - (c) Maintain and be responsible for keeping all records and reports.
 - (d) Report directly to GV's program manager on emergency issues.
 - i. Direct and communicate to Field Supervisor daily.
 - ii. Be available to participate in security audits and evaluations of Sites locations, practices and procedures. This requirement is a material term of this Contract.

H. TIMES OF SERVICE

- (1) Time Records
 - (a) Time records shall be signed by VSOs at the beginning and end of each shift and include a standard description of assignments for each day broken down in actual increments. No other VSO or Supervisor is authorized to sign time records.
 - (b) All original time records for a VSO which GVB is charged, shall be maintained within the island of Guam and be retrievable within 24 hours of GVB's request.
 - (c) Contractor shall maintain electronic records of actual daily VSO assignments and functions in a standard and reportable manner.
 - (d) Contractor shall make time records and payroll records available for inspection, copying or audit for the entire term of the Agreement.



- (e) Time records shall be signed at the end of each shift by the Field Supervisor, certifying the accuracy of the time record the VSO.
- (f) Time records for all VSOs shall be maintained at the Contractors main place of business.
- (g) The Contractor must provide the assignment rotation a minimum of once every two (2) months.

(2) Hours of Service

(a) Shift Schedule

The Contractor shall provide VSOs to fill all shifts listed in Exhibit A. GVB reserves the right to change the times or locations of the shifts listed in Exhibit A.

Contractor agrees that the Services to be performed by it herein, including the locations and areas where Services to be performed by it herein, including the locations and areas where Services are to be maintained, and the numbers of trained, equipped and qualified VSOs to be furnished by the Contractor hereunder shall be subject to the approval of GVB. Contractor agrees that the scheduled work hours and days of Services may be changed at any time, without any penalty to GVB, provided GVB give ten (10) business days' notice of any changes to Exhibit A, except in emergencies.

I. REPORTS AND MEETINGS

(1) Quarterly Meetings

Contractor's Account Manager shall attend quarterly status meetings with GVB management and staff to discuss issues related to the Agreement including, nut not limited to, performance, invoice payments, Agreement status, personnel issues, etc. At least one (1) week prior to the quarterly status report that summarizes the status of performance of the Agreement with respect to the Subject matters listed above and any others that either party request be included on the agenda for quarterly status meeting.

(a) Reports

i. General Report Requirements: Whenever a written report is required under the Agreement, any such report must be written in legible English. All reports must be submitted in Microsoft Word or compatible format in the approved template. Any changes to report content or formats requested by GVB shall be made at no cost to GVB. All written reports are to be submitted by the beginning of the next business day to:



Guam Visitors Bureau 401 Pale San Vitores Road Tumon, Guam 96913

- ii. Generate an Incident Reports Procedure: Incident Reports shall be prepared no later than the end of the shift during which an incident occurs by each and every VSO who witnessed or responded to the incident. Included in the incident report is a description of the reported incident and status such as "no incident", "all clear", "further investigation and follow-up required". The incident report shall be submitted to GVB's program manager, or a designated representative. Incident Reports must be submitted by VSO's whenever there is an event or condition on or adjacent to Site locations involving injury to persons or property, suspicious activity, unauthorized persons of property or any significant confrontations or altercations among or between visitors, business owners, and other members of the public. Original Incident Reports must be submitted to GVB each day for the prior business day's incidents in electronic format or by fax. An Incident Report must be filed in any of the following circumstances:
 - A VSO is required to intervene between any or two or more person, including other VSOs, members of the public or GVB staff;
 - A VSO witnesses any crime or suspected crime, including assault;
 - A VSO witnesses any incident in which there is a potential personal injury, whether or not medical attention is requested or required, or in which loss or damage to public or private property occurs;
 - A VSO is required to give direction or an order to any person on a Site location and they protest or express their unwillingness to comply;
 - A VSO discovers any unlocked doors or any activated alarms, false or otherwise;
 - A VSO discovers any evidence of an area being used and/or occupied by vagrants or loiterers.
 - A VSO observes suspicious or unusual activities, intrusion alarm information, or Graffiti attacks.
- (b) Annual Summary Reports. Each year, 90 days before each anniversary date of this Contract, Contractor must furnish a report of the total services ordered under this Contract during the preceding twelve months. The Report must be in a format acceptable to GVB and must list by Department or location the following:
 - All services awarded under this contract:



- Total quantity and dollar value of each service ordered, including services for which there were no orders;
- Contractors must also furnish a separate similar report for the total of all services ordered by GVB, which are not part of this Contract.

1.2 RFP Process

It is in the best interest of the Offeror to register online at www.guamvisitorsbureau.com to download the complete RFP solicitation packet; or by registering at GVB if the packet is obtained at the GVB office at 401 Pale San Vitores Road, Tumon, Guam 96913.

All inquiries pertaining to this RFP are to be addressed to the President and CEO, acting in the capacity of the Chief Procurement Officer, Guam Visitors Bureau, 401 Pale San Vitores Road, Tumon, Guam 96913.

The President and CEO or his designee(s) will coordinate all questions through GVB Procurement and will respond in writing. The President and CEO may also be contacted at (671) 646-5278/9, or via email at procurement@visitguam.org. If an addendum is required it will be issued by GVB, and posted on the GVB website at www.guamvisitorsbureau.com.

If it becomes necessary to revise or amend any part of this RFP, GVB will publish a revision by written addendum on its website and notify all prospective Offerors who have registered. Offerors will be responsible for adhering to the requirements of any addenda to this RFP.

GVB hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract entered into pursuant to this solicitation, minority business enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit a response to this request for proposal and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for an award.

The right is reserved to reject any or all proposals or bids, waive any imperfection in the bid proposal or cancel this solicitation all according to law in the interest of GVB.

Offerors are to rely, for information regarding this RFP, on the RFP itself and information provided by the President and CEO as indicated in the introduction to this RFP. GVB is not responsible for any misinformation received from other sources.

The responsibility for submitting a response to this RFP on or before the stated time and date will be solely and strictly that of the Offeror. GVB will in no way be responsible for delays caused by the U.S. Post Office, courier services, or by any entity or by any occurrence.

By submitting a Proposal, the Offeror agrees to accept and abide by the terms of this RFP. GVB reserves the right to reject any or all submittals, to waive any informality or irregularity, and to accept any submittals which it may deem to be in the best interest of GVB and the territory.



1.3 RFP Submission Criteria

- A. Each Offeror shall submit six (6) complete sets of the proposal: one (1) marked "ORIGINAL" and five (5) marked "COPY."
- B. An official authorized to legally bind the Offeror to all RFP provisions contained herein shall sign the proposal. Submittals will be considered incomplete if they do not bear the signature of an agent of the Offeror who is in a position to contractually bind the Offeror.
- C. Terms and conditions differing from those set forth in this RFP may be cause for disqualification of the proposal.
- D. Offeror must designate those portions of their proposal, if any, they believe contain trade secrets or proprietary data which Offeror wants to keep confidential.
- E. Offeror must organize proposal into sections that follow the format of this RFP, with tabs separating each section. A point-by-point response to all numbered sections, subsections and appendices is required. If no explanation or clarification is required in the Offeror's response to a specific subsection, the Offeror shall indicate so in the point-by-point response or utilize a blanket response for the entire section with the following statement: "(Offeror's Name) understands and will comply."

1.4 Requests for Clarification

- A. It is incumbent upon each Offeror to carefully examine all specifications, terms, and conditions contained in the RFP. Any inquiry regarding this solicitation must be made in writing and in accordance with the requirements of this RFP. To be considered, inquiries must be addressed to GVB's point of contact set forth above.
- B. GVB will issue responses to inquiries in writing prior to the date on which proposals are due. GVB will email, airmail, and post on the GVB website said responses to each person recorded as having been furnished with a copy of this RFP, and prospective Offerors are responsible for ensuring that they receive all such responses. To ascertain whether GVB issued such responses with respect to this RFP, prospective Offerors may contact GVB's point of contact as set forth above.
- C. Prospective offers and Offerors should not rely on any representations, statements, or clarifications not made in this RFP or in a formal GVB response. GVB will not be responsible for any oral representation(s) given by any employee, representative, or other individual. The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method by which interpretation, clarification, or additional information can be given.
- D. Prospective Offerors are advised that, from the date of issuance of this RFP until the award of any contract, they are not permitted to contact GVB Board of Directors or employees, and/or the Selection Committee related to this solicitation, except



for GVB's designated point of contact as set forth above. Offerors who violate this requirement will be disqualified.

1.5 Schedule of Events

Offerors must abide by the Schedule of Events as indicated on page 6 of this RFP.

1.6 RFP Closing Date

Proposals shall be submitted to GVB no later than **5:00 p.m.** *Chamorro (Guam) Standard time, September 11, 2017 (Monday),* at 401 Pale San Vitores Road, Tumon, Guam, 96913. Proposals received after this date and time will not be considered.

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

(FACSIMILE AND E-MAIL OF PROPOSALS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED)

All proposals shall be sealed and delivered or mailed to:

ATTN: MR. JON NATHAN DENIGHT

President and CEO
Guam Visitors Bureau
401 Pale San Vitores Road
Tumon, Guam 96913

Mark package(s):

YOUR COMPANY NAME
SUBMISSION IN RESPONSE TO
GVB RFP NO. 2017-008
VISITOR SAFETY OFFICERS
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENT ENCLOSED

Note: Please ensure that if a third party carrier (Federal Express, Airborne, UPS, USPS, etc.) is used, that it is properly instructed to deliver your proposal only to GVB at the address noted above. To be considered, a proposal must be received and accepted by GVB before the RFP closing date and time.

1.8 Offeror's Responsibilities

An Offeror, by submitting a proposal, represents that:

- A. The Offeror has read and understands the RFP in its entirety and that the proposal is made in accordance therewith, and;
- B. The Offeror possesses the capabilities, resources, and personnel necessary to provide efficient and successful service to GVB, and;
- C. Before submitting a proposal, each Offeror shall make all investigations and examinations necessary to ascertain site and/or local conditions and requirements



affecting the full performance of the contract and to verify any representations made by GVB upon which the Offeror will rely. If the Offeror receives an award because of its proposal submission, failure to have made such investigations and examinations will in no way relieve the Offeror from its obligations to comply in every detail with all provisions and requirements of the contract, nor will a plea of ignorance of such conditions and requirements be accepted as a basis for any claim by the Offeror for additional compensation or relief.

1.9 Conflict of Interest

All Offerors shall complete and have notarized the attached disclosure form of any potential conflict of interest that an Offeror may have due to ownership, other clients, contracts, or interests associated with this RFP. (**NOTE:** Required Affidavits are provided in this RFP.)

1.10 Certificates

GVB reserves the right to require proof that the Offeror is an established business and is abiding by the regulations and laws of Guam, such as but not limited to occupational licenses and business licenses.

Offeror shall attach a copy of its Guam business license. Offeror shall include all current licenses, certifications, and any additional documentation that illustrates the Offeror's qualifications to perform the services specified in this RFP.

1.11 Presentations by Offerors

GVB at its sole discretion may ask individual Offerors to make oral presentations and/or demonstrations without charge to GVB.

GVB reserves the right to require any Offeror to demonstrate to the satisfaction of GVB that the Offeror has the requisite ability to properly furnish the services and requirements of this RFP. The demonstration must satisfy GVB and GVB shall be the sole judge of compliance.

Offerors are cautioned not to assume that presentations will be required and should include all pertinent and required information in their original proposal package.

1.12 Award

GVB reserves the right to award the contract to the Offeror that GVB deems to be the best qualified.

In addition, GVB at its sole discretion, reserves the right to cancel this RFP, to reject any and all proposals, to waive any and all informalities and/or irregularities, or to re-advertise with either the identical or revised specifications, if it is deemed to be in the territory of Guam's best interest to do so.

This RFP does not commit GVB to award a contract. GVB shall not be responsible for any cost or expense, which may be incurred by the Offeror in preparing and submitting the proposal called for in this RFP, or any cost or expense incurred by the Offeror prior to the execution of a contract.



1.13 Records and Right to Audit

The Offeror shall maintain such financial records and other records as may be prescribed by GVB or by applicable federal and local laws, rules, and regulations.

1.14 Offeror's Personnel

- A. The Offeror shall comply with all:
 - 1. Local laws, regulations, and labor union agreements governing work hours; and
 - 2. Labor regulations including collective bargaining agreements, workers' compensation, working conditions, fringe benefits, and labor standards or labor contract matters.
- B. The Offeror shall indemnify and hold GVB harmless from all claims arising out of the requirements of this provision. This indemnity includes the Offeror's obligation to defend and/or resolve, without cost to GVB, any claims or litigation concerning allegations that the Offeror or GVB, or both, have not fully complied with local labor laws or regulations relating to the performance of work required by the contract.

1.15 Termination / Cancellation of Contract

GVB reserves the right to cancel the contract without cause with a minimum thirty (30) days written notice. Termination or cancellation of the contract will not relieve the Offeror of any obligations for any deliverables entered into prior to the termination of the contract (i.e. reports, statements of accounts, etc., required and not received).

Termination or cancellation of the contract will not relieve the Offeror of any obligations or liabilities resulting from any acts committed by the Offeror prior to the termination of the contract.

Termination for Default. GVB shall notify the Offeror in writing of deficiencies or default in the performance of its duties under the contract and the Offeror shall have ten (10) days to correct same or to request, in writing, a hearing. GVB shall hear and act upon same within twenty (20) days from receipt of said request and shall notify the Offeror of said action. The action by GVB shall be either to confirm, in whole or in part, the specified deficiencies or default, or to relieve the Offeror of responsibilities for said deficiencies or default, or find that there are no deficiencies or default, or such action as deemed necessary in the judgment of GVB. Failure of the Offeror to remedy said specified items of deficiency or default in the notice by GVB within ten (10) days of receipt of such notice of such decision, shall result in the termination of the contract, and GVB shall be relieved of any and all responsibilities and liabilities under the terms and provisions of the contract.

1.16 Independent Contractor Relationship

Offeror shall provide the services required herein strictly under a contractual relationship with GVB and is not, nor shall be, construed to be an agent or employee of GVB. As an independent



contractor, the Offeror shall pay any and all applicable taxes required by law and shall comply with all pertinent federal and local statutes. Benefits for Offeror, its employees and subcontractors shall be the sole responsibility of the Offeror including, but not limited to, health and life insurance, mandatory social security, retirement, liability/risk coverage, and workers and unemployment compensation.

The Offeror shall hire, compensate, supervise, and terminate members of its work force, and shall direct and control the manner in which work is performed including conditions under which individuals will be assigned duties, how individuals will report, and the hours individuals will perform.

The Offeror shall not be provided special space, facilities, or equipment by GVB to perform any of the duties required by the contract nor shall GVB pay for any business, travel, or training expenses or any other contract performance expenses not specifically set forth in the specifications.

Prior to commencing work, the successful Offeror will be required to sign a written contract incorporating the specifications and terms of the RFP and the response thereto. The initial contract term is for a one-year period, with two one-year options to renew. The contractual obligation of both parties in each fiscal period succeeding the first is subject to the appropriation and availability of funds therefore.

Upon expiration of the third contract term, the President and CEO may have the option to extend contract for a period not to exceed [90 days] from the ending term date, or until such time GVB is able to secure a new contract.

1.17 Assignment/Subcontract

The Offeror shall not assign, transfer, convey, sublet, or otherwise dispose of any award or of any of its rights, title, or interests therein, without the prior written consent of GVB. Subcontractors shall be subject to all provisions of the resulting contract. GVB shall approve any requests for assignments and/or subcontracting prior to execution.

1.18 Governing Laws

Except to the extent federal law is applicable, the laws and regulations of Guam shall govern the interpretation, effect, and validity of the RFP and any contract resulting from this RFP. Venue of any court action shall be in Guam. In the event that a suit is brought for the enforcement of any term of the contract, or any right arising there from, the parties expressly waive their respective rights to have such action tried by jury trial and hereby consent to the use of non-jury trial for the adjudication of such suit.

Any dispute arising under or out of this RFP and/or contract is subject to the provisions of Title 2 Guam Administrative Rules and Regulations, Division 4 (Procurement Regulations), Chapter 9 (Legal and Contractual Remedies); Title 5 Guam Code Annotated, Chapter 5 (Guam Procurement Law), Article 9 (Legal and Contractual Remedies); and any other applicable laws, statutes, or regulations.



1.19 Indemnification of GVB

The Offeror shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend GVB, its officers, agents, and employees from or on account of any claims losses, expenses, injuries, damages, actions, lawsuits, judgments, or liability resulting or arising from Offeror's performance or nonperformance of services pursuant to the contract, excluding any claims, losses, expenses, injuries, damage, or liability resulting or arising from the actions of GVB, its officers, agents, or employees. The indemnification shall obligate the Offeror to defend at its own expense or to provide for such defense, at GVB's option, any and all claims and suits brought against GVB, which may result from Offeror's performance or nonperformance of services pursuant to the contract.

1.20 Modifications Due to Public Welfare or Change in Law

GVB shall have the power to make changes in the contract as the result of changes in law and to impose new rules and regulations on the Offeror under the contract relative to the scope and methods of providing services as shall, from time-to-time, be necessary and desirable for the public welfare. GVB shall give the Offeror notice of any proposed change and an opportunity to be heard concerning those matters. The scope and method of providing services as referenced herein shall also be liberally construed to include, but is not limited to, the manner, procedures. operations and obligations, financial or otherwise, of the Offeror. In the event of any future change in federal or Guam laws, GVB materially alters the obligations of the Offeror, or the benefits to GVB, then the contract shall be amended consistent therewith. Should these amendments materially alter the obligations of the Offeror, then the Offeror or GVB shall be entitled to an adjustment in the rates and charges established under the contract. Nothing contained in the contract shall require any party to perform any act or function contrary to law. GVB and the Offeror agree to enter into good faith negotiations regarding modifications to the contract, which may be required in order to implement changes in the interest of the public welfare or due to change in law. When such modifications are made to the contract, GVB and the Offeror shall negotiate in good faith, a reasonable and appropriate adjustment for any changes in services or other obligations required of the Offeror directly and demonstrably due to any modification in the contract under this clause.

1.21 Force Majeure

GVB and the Offeror will exercise every reasonable effort to meet their respective obligations as outlined in the RFP and the ensuing contract, but shall not be liable for delays resulting from force majeure or other causes beyond their reasonable control, including but not limited to, compliance with any government law or regulation, acts of God, acts or omissions of the other party, government acts or omissions, fires, strikes, national disasters, wars, riots, transportation problems, and/or any other cause whatsoever beyond the reasonable control of the parties. Any such cause will extend the performance of the delayed obligation to the extent of the delay so incurred.

1.22 Confidential or Proprietary Information

Proposals of Offerors who are not awarded the contract shall not be opened to public inspection, but will be part of the official procurement record. After award, the proposal of the Offeror



receiving a contract will become available for public inspection. If the Offeror selected for award has requested in writing upon submission of Proposal the non-disclosure of trade secrets or other proprietary data so identified, GVB shall examine the designated information to determine whether such information shall be considered proprietary. If GVB and Offeror are unable to agree as to the disclosure of certain portions of Offeror's proposal, GVB shall inform the Offeror in writing what portion of the proposal will be disclosed and that, unless the Offeror withdraws the proposal, or protests under 5 GCA Article 9 (Legal and Contractual Remedies) of the Guam Procurement Law, the information may be so disclosed. (See also Title 2, Guam Administrative Regulations, Division 4, Section 3114(h)(1)).

1.23 Submission of Fee(s)

The Offeror determined to be best qualified will be notified to submit to GVB, at a time specified by GVB and prior to commencement of negotiations, their fee to perform the required services.

SECTION II

EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA

2.0 Evaluation Process

Selection of the best qualified Offeror will be based on the qualifications, experience, and commitment of the Offeror's lead and support individuals proposed for this RFP, and the Offeror's plan of action. GVB plans to negotiate a contract with the best-qualified Offeror for the required services at a compensation rate determined in writing to be fair and reasonable.

2.1 Evaluation Committee

The GVB President and CEO will form an Evaluation Committee. Evaluations may be conducted as a group or individually, however, each Evaluator shall use the same evaluation form and the results compiled to present a cumulative score with recommendation(s) to the President and CEO. The President and CEO shall then request the approval of GVB's Board of Directors approval to enter into negotiations with the best-qualified Offeror.

2.2 Evaluation Criteria & Scale

The Evaluation Committee will review and evaluate all offers according to the established criteria contained herein based on a maximum possible value of 100 points. All proposals must include the following and will be scored by the point scale provided:

- **A. 50 points. Qualifications & Experience:** All proposals submitted in response to this opportunity shall contain a Statement of Qualifications, which shall:
 - A.1. Describe the qualifications and ability of the Offeror to perform the Scope of Services set forth in this document;
 - A.2. Identify the team members and any other key staff personnel to be involved in this project;



- A.3. Provide sufficient detail to support their degrees or levels of expertise, job performance, and ability to perform the work contemplated;
- A.4. Provide the name and resume of the person or persons who will perform services pursuant to this RFP;
- A.5. Include resumes of the principals, key staff, and any other employees who will be directly involved in performing the work.

B. 5 points. Demonstrated Capability and Capacity to Respond.

- B.1. Prospective offerors must demonstrate that they possess the capacity and capability to respond to the broad range of projects, challenges and opportunities that need innovative solutions.
- B.2. Include a minimum of three (3) examples of similar successful projects to include but not limited to Project Name, Project Summary, Place, Name of the Organization your firm provided the work to and at least one (1) photo of the final product.

C. 5 points. Quality & Responsiveness.

The quality and responsiveness of an Offeror's proposal is subject but not limited to the following:

- C.1. Proof of the license to do business on Guam and statement of no pending legal issues with the government or other private companies.
- C.2. Affidavits (attached) notarized in the state or territory of the offeror's principal place of establishment.
- C.3. Adherence to any amendments issued by GVB.
- C.4. At a minimum the Offeror shall provide:
 - (a) Name and address of offeror
 - (b) Age of Offeror's business
 - (c) List of all subcontractor's for this project.

D. 40 points. Plan of Performance – Approach & Strategy

Plan of Performance must include the Offeror's Approach and Strategy to carrying out the services sought herein. This must include but is not limited to the following:

- D.1. Proposals shall include a Work Plan that delineates the Firm's approach to be used in working with GVB to provide the services sought herein. (see Section 1: 1.1 Scope of Work).
- D.2. The Offeror shall describe its conception of the best working relationship with GVB and other governmental agencies that would ensure the success of this project.



D.3. Proposed subcontractors (if any) it would engage to effect a full turn-key service.

TOTAL MAXIMUM POINTS.....(100 Points)

2.3 Investigation and Rejection

GVB reserves the right to conduct any investigation deemed necessary as to the background, qualifications, experience, and record of performance of any Offeror, and to reject any or all proposals if deemed necessary in the public interest. GVB shall review and determine whether an Offeror has the necessary qualifications, staffing, management, and experience required to properly conduct the work in accordance with all applicable laws, statutes, and regulations.

SECTION III

INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS

3.0 Defined Terms

The terms used in these Instructions to Offerors are defined in Guam's procurement laws and regulations have the same meanings assigned to them in this RFP. The term "Offeror" means one who submits a proposal directly to GVB, as distinct from a sub-Offeror who submits a proposal to the Offeror. The term "successful Offeror" means the best-qualified Offeror for the required services to whom GVB (on the basis of GVB's evaluation as hereinafter provided) makes an award. The term "request for proposals documents" includes the invitation to submit a proposal, instructions to Offerors, and all addenda. The term "GVB" means the Guam Visitors Bureau and vice versa. The term "price data" are factual information concerning prices, including profit, for supplies, services, or construction substantially similar to those being procured. In this definition, "prices" refer to offered or proposed selling prices, historical selling prices, and current selling prices of such items. This definition of "prices" refers to data relevant to both prime and subcontract prices. The term "cost data" are information concerning the actual or estimated cost of labor, material, overhead, and other cost elements which have been actually incurred or which are expected to be incurred by the contractor in performing the contract.

3.1 Type of Procurement

This procurement is a Request for Proposal.

3.2 Language of Proposal

The proposal prepared by the Offeror and all correspondence and documents relating to the proposal exchanged by the Offeror and GVB shall be written in the English language. Supporting documents and printed literature furnished by the Offeror with the proposal may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an appropriate translation of relevant passages in the English language. For the purpose of interpretation of the proposal, the English language translation shall prevail.

3.3 Familiarity with Laws

The Offeror is assumed to be familiar with all U.S. federal and Guam laws that in any manner affect the work to be performed under this RFP. Ignorance on the part of the Offeror will in no



way relieve them from responsibility.

3.4 Signature on Proposal

The Offerors must sign their proposals correctly. If the proposal is made by an individual, said individual's name and mailing address must be shown. If made by a firm or partnership, the name and mailing address of each member of the firm or partnership must be shown. If made by a corporation, the person signing the proposal shall show the name of the country, state, or territory under the laws of which the corporation was chartered, and the names and business address of its president, secretary, and treasurer. A proposal submitted by a joint venture must be accompanied by the document of formation of the joint venture, duly registered and authenticated by a notary public, in which is defined precisely the conditions under which it will function, its period of duration, the persons authorized to represent and obligate it, the participation of the several firms forming the joint venture, the principal member of the joint venture, and address for correspondence for the joint venture. The Offeror is advised that the joint venture agreement must include a clause stating that the members of the joint venture are severally and jointly bound by the terms of the contract.

3.5 Currencies of Proposal and Payment

All rates and prices in the proposal and all payments to the Offeror shall be in the currency of the United States of America.

3.6 Modification or Withdrawal of Proposals

Proposals may be modified or withdrawn at any time prior to the submission date.

3.7 Receipt, Opening and Recording of Proposals

Upon receipt, each proposal and/or modification will be time-stamped, held in a secure place, and not be opened until the proposal closing date. The only acceptable evidence to establish the date and time of receipt at GVB is the date and time stamp of the GVB Office on the wrapper or other documentary evidence of receipt maintained by GVB. Proposals and modifications shall not be opened publicly, but shall be opened in the presence of two or more GVB procurement officials. After the date established for receipt of proposals, a registrar of proposals will be prepared which shall include all proposals, the name of each Offeror, the number of modifications received, if any, and a description sufficient to identify the service item offered. The registrar of proposals shall be opened to public inspection only after award of the contract. Proposals and modifications shall be shown only to GVB procurement personnel having an interest in them.

3.8 Evaluations and Discussions

- A. Evaluation: GVB will evaluate all proposals submitted and may conduct discussions with any Offeror. The purpose of such discussions shall be to:
 - 1. Determine in greater detail such Offeror's qualifications; and
 - 2. Explore with the Offeror the scope and nature of the required services, the Offeror's proposed method of performance, and the relative utility of alternative



methods of approach.

- B. Non-Disclosure of Information: Discussions shall not disclose any information derived from proposals submitted by other Offerors, and GVB shall not disclose any information contained in any proposals until after award of the proposed contract has been made. The proposal of the Offeror awarded the contract shall be opened to public inspection except as otherwise provided for in the contract. The proposals of the Offerors who are not awarded the contract shall not be opened to public inspection.
- C. Selection of the Best Qualified Offeror: Upon completion of the validation of qualifications, evaluations, and discussions, GVB shall select, in the order of their respective qualification ranking, no fewer than three (3) acceptable Offerors, or such lesser number if less than three (3) acceptable proposals were received, deemed to be the best qualified to provide the required services.
- D. Submission of Cost or Pricing Data: The Offeror determined to be the best qualified shall be required to submit cost or pricing data to GVB at a time specified by GVB prior to the commencement of negotiations.

3.9 Negotiation and Award of Contract

- A. General: GVB shall negotiate a contract with the best-qualified Offeror for the required services at a compensation determined in writing to be fair and reasonable.
- B. Elements of Negotiation: Contract negotiations shall be directed toward:
 - Making certain that the Offeror has a clear understanding of the scope of work, specifically, the essential requirements involved in providing the required services.
 - 2. Determining that the Offeror will make available the necessary personnel and facilities to perform the services within the required time.
 - 3. Agreeing upon compensation which is fair and reasonable, taking into account the estimated value of the required services, and the scope, complexity, and nature of such services.

3.10 Successful Negotiation of Contract With Best-Qualified Offeror

If compensation, contract requirements, and contract documents can be agreed upon with the best-qualified Offeror, and subject to Board approval, the contract shall be awarded to that Offeror. Written notice of award shall be public information and made a part of GVB's procurement file.

3.11 Failure to Negotiate Contract With Best-Qualified Offeror

A. If compensation, contract requirements, or contract documents cannot be agreed upon with the best qualified Offeror, a written record stating the reasons therefore shall be



- placed in the procurement file and GVB shall advise such Offeror of the termination of negotiations which shall be confirmed by GVB's written notice to such Offeror.
- B. Upon failure to negotiate a contract with the best-qualified Offeror, GVB may enter into negotiations with the next most qualified Offeror. If compensation, contract requirements, and contract documents can be agreed upon, then the contract shall be awarded to that Offeror. If negotiations again fail, negotiations shall be terminated as set forth in paragraph 3.11(A) above and new negotiations shall commence with the next qualified Offeror.
- C. Should GVB be unable to negotiate a contract with any of the Offerors initially selected as the best qualified Offerors, offers may be resolicited, or additional Offerors may be selected based on original, acceptable submissions in the order of their respective qualification ranking and negotiations may continue until an agreement is reached and the contract is awarded.

3.12 Cancellation of Solicitation; Delays

GVB reserves the right to cancel or to withdraw this RFP as provided in law and regulation, to delay any GVB determination required by the RFP, or to reject all proposals, or any individual Proposal in whole or in part at any time prior to the final award in the best interest of GVB as provided in law and regulation. The reasons for the cancellation, delay, or rejection shall be made a part of the procurement file and shall be available for public inspection.

- A. After opening of the proposals, but prior to award, all proposals or any individual proposal in whole or in part, may be rejected when GVB determines in writing that such action is in the territory of Guam's best interest for reasons including but not limited to:
 - 1. The supplies or services being procured by this solicitation are no longer needed.
 - 2. Ambiguous or otherwise inadequate specifications were part of the solicitation.
 - 3. The solicitation did not provide consideration of all factors of significance to the territory.
 - 4. The proposals only offer prices which exceed available funds and it would not be appropriate to adjust quantities to come within available funds.
 - 5. All otherwise acceptable proposals received contain unreasonable prices.
 - 6. There is reason to believe that the proposals may not have been arrived at in open competition, and/or that there was collusion between Offerors and/or the proposals were not submitted in good faith.

If this RFP is cancelled or all the proposals have been rejected prior to final award, notice of cancellation or rejection shall be sent to all Offerors. The reasons for the



cancellation or rejection shall be made a part of the procurement file and shall be available for public inspection.

- B. GVB may reject any individual proposal in whole or in part when such rejection is in the best interest of the territory. Reasons for rejecting a proposal in whole or in part include but are not limited to:
 - 1. GVB has determined that the Offeror is not a responsible Offeror pursuant to 2 GAR, Div. 4, Chap. 3, §3116.
 - 2. The proposal is non-responsive, that is, it does not conform in all material respects to the RFP.
 - 3. The offered supply or service in the proposal is unacceptable by reason of its failure to meet the requirements of the specifications or permissible alternatives or other acceptable criteria set forth in the RFP.

3.13 Disqualification of Proponent

More than one proposal from an individual, firm, partnership, corporation, or association under the same or different names will not be considered. Reasonable grounds for believing that an Offeror has an interest in more than one (1) proposal for the same work will cause the rejection of all proposals in which such Offeror is believed to have an interest. Any or all proposals will be rejected if there is reason to believe that collusion exists among the Offerors and no participants of such collusion will be considered in future request for proposals for the same work. Proposals in which the prices obviously are unbalanced will be rejected. Proposals submitted by Offerors who do not meet the evaluation criteria will not be considered for review by GVB.

3.14 Right to Reject Proposal

GVB reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals in accordance with law and regulation, and to waive technical errors, or minor informalities, or to accept any proposals in part.

3.15 Award of Contract

The award of contract, if it is awarded, will be awarded to the best qualified Offeror for the required services at a compensation determined in writing to be fair and reasonable, and subject to the approval of the Board. In no case will the award be made until GVB has completed all necessary investigations into the responsibility of the proposed Offeror, and GVB is satisfied that the proposed Offeror is qualified to do the work and has the necessary organization, capitol, and equipment to carry out the provisions of the contract to GVB's satisfaction within the time specified.

3.16 Execution of Contract

The Offeror which is determined to be the best qualified, or the next best qualified Offeror should GVB cease contract negotiations with better qualified Offerors, shall sign the necessary agreement entering into a contract with GVB, and return a fully executed contract, containing the terms mutually agreed upon by the parties, to GVB within **seven** (7) calendar days after GVB determines in writing that the Offeror's requested compensation, for the required services, is fair



and reasonable.

3.17 Addenda

Any amendment, modification, or addenda issued by GVB, prior to the established due date of the proposals, for the purpose of changing the intent of the plans and specifications clarifying the meaning, or changing any of the provisions of this RFP, shall be binding to the same extent as if originally required by this RFP. Any addenda issued by GVB will be sent to all Offerors in duplicate. Notice may also be obtained by accessing GVB's web site. The Offerors shall acknowledge receipt of the same by their signatures on one copy, which is to be returned to GVB, and said copy shall accompany the Offerors respective proposals. Acknowledgment may also be made in writing or by email.

3.18 Invoicing And Payment Terms And Conditions

All applicable invoices from the Offeror who is awarded the contract arising from this RFP shall include supporting documents (i.e., timesheets, shipping invoices, consumable listings, receipts, etc.). All supporting documents must be reviewed and approved by GVB prior to invoice submittal for charges. All applicable GVB approved invoices will be paid net thirty (30) days from the date the invoices are received by GVB. Payment shall be made using a method mutually agreed upon by GVB and the successful Offeror. Applicable invoices must be submitted no later than three (3) months after completion of any given task or project. Failure to do so may result in forfeiture of payment.

3.19 Taxes

The successful Offeror shall be liable for all applicable taxes and duties. GVB shall have no tax liability under this contract arising from this RFP. Specific information on taxes may be obtained from the Department of Revenue and Taxation, Government of Guam.

3.20 Licensing

GVB will not consider for award any proposal submitted by an Offeror who has not complied with Guam's business and/or other licensing laws. Specific information on licenses may be obtained from the Department of Revenue and Taxation, Government of Guam.

3.21 Disclosure of Major Shareholders

As a condition of submitting a proposal in response to this RFP, all Offerors, whether they are partnerships, sole proprietorships, or corporations, shall submit an affidavit executed under oath that lists the name and address of any person who has held more than ten (10) percent of the outstanding interest or shares in said partnership, sole proprietorship, or corporation, at any time during the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding submission of the proposal made in response to this RFP. The affidavit shall contain the name and address of any person who has received or is entitled to receive a commission, gratuity, or other compensation for procuring or assisting in obtaining business related to this RFP for the Offeror and shall also contain the amounts of any such commission, gratuity, or other compensation. The affidavit shall be open and available to the public for inspection and copying.



3.22 Local Procurement Preference/ Service Disabled Veteran Owned Business Preference

Offerors who seek local procurement preference may request it as part of their proposals, for GVB's consideration. Only Offerors who qualify for local procurement preference pursuant to 5 GCA §5008 may receive said preference by GVB. The GVB will employ where applicable a service disabled veteran owned business preference in accordance with 5 GCA §5011.

3.23 Non-Collusion Affidavit and Conflict of Interest Disclosures

Offerors must submit a non-collusion affidavit and conflict of interest disclosures in the form provided with this RFP. Failure to submit said affidavit and disclosures shall result in the Offeror's proposal to be deemed non-responsive to this RFP, and such proposal shall not be considered for award.

3.24 Restrictions Against Contractors Employing Sex Offenders from Working at Government of Guam Venues

The Offeror must submit with their proposal an affidavit acknowledging their responsibilities pursuant to 5 GCA § 5253, Restriction Against Contractors Employing Convicted Sex Offenders from Working at Government of Guam Venues. Per this statute, the Offeror must affirm that:

- A. No person providing services on behalf of the contractor has been convicted of a sex offense under the provisions of Chapter 25 of Title 9 GCA or an offense as defined in Article 2 of Chapter 28, Title 9 GCA, or an offense in another jurisdiction with, at a minimum, the same elements as such offenses, or who is listed on the Sex Offender Registry; and;
- B. That if any person providing services on behalf of the contractor is convicted of a sex offense under the provisions of Chapter 25 of Title 9 GCA or an offense as defined in Article 2 of Chapter 28, Title 9 GCA or an offense in another jurisdiction with, at a minimum, the same elements as such offenses, or who is listed on the Sex Offender Registry, that such person will be immediately removed from working at said agency and that the administrator of said agency be informed of such within twenty-four (24) hours of such conviction.

3.25 Compliance with Wage Laws

The Offer who is awarded a contract shall pay employees, at a minimum, in accordance with the Wage Determination for Guam issued and promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor for such labor as is employed in the direct delivery of contract deliverables to GVB. In the event of a renewal of the contract, the Wage Determination promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor on a date most recent to the renewal date of the contract shall apply to that renewal contract. In addition to the applicable Wage Determination, the contract shall contain provisions mandating health and similar benefits for employees, such benefits having a minimum value as detailed in the Wage Determination promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor, and shall contain provision guaranteeing a minimum of ten (10) paid holidays per annum for each employee.

The Offer is required to execute the Declaration Re Compliance with U.S. DOL Wage



Determination, and submit the executed declaration with the Offeror's proposal. NOTE: Required Affidavits are provided in this RFP.

3.26 Gratuities and Kickbacks

- A. Gratuities. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any person to offer, give or agree to give any employee or former employee, or for any employee or former employee to solicit, demand, accept or agree to accept from another person, a gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation, preparation of any part of a program requirement or a purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing, or in any other advisory capacity in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy, or other particular matter, pertaining to any program requirement or a contract or subcontract; or to any solicitation or proposal therefor.
- B. Kickbacks. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor or any person associated therewith, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order.

3.27 Contingent Fees

- A. Contingent Fees. It shall be a breach of ethical standards for a person to be retained, or to retain a person, to solicit or secure a territorial contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, except for retention of bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies for the purpose of securing business.
- B. Representation of Contractor. Every person, before being awarded a territorial contract, shall represent, in writing, that such person has not retained anyone in violation of Subsection (a) of this Section. Failure to do so constitutes a breach of ethical standards.

3.28 Representation Regarding Ethical Standards

The bidder, offeror, or contractor represents that it has not knowingly influenced and promises that it will not knowingly influence a government employee to breach any of the ethical standards set forth in 5 GCA Chapter 5 Article 11 (Ethics in Public Contracting) of the Guam Procurement Act and in Chapter 11 of the Guam Procurement Regulations.

3.29 Condition of Contract

As a condition of contract, contractor will agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the GVB and the Government of Guam in all actions and from all liability in tort or contract arising from contractor performance of a contract.

3.30 Contact for Contract Negotiation

If your firm is selected as the best qualified to perform the services as described herein, please designate a person whom we may contact for prompt negotiation by filling out FORM NO. 1, attached herein.



3.31 Notice of Award

GVB will notify all Offerors of the results of the award. Written notice of award will be public information and made a part of the contract file.

* * * END OF SECTION III * * *



APPENDIX A GVB RFP 2017-008

AFFIDAVITS 1 ~ 7

- 1: Affidavit Disclosing Ownerships and Commissions
- 2: Affidavit re Non-Collusion
- 3: Affidavit re No Gratuities or Kickbacks
- 4: Affidavit re Ethical Standards
- **5:** Declaration re Compliance with U.S. DOL Wage Determination: please attach most current wage listing
- 6: Affidavit re Contingent Fees
- 7: Restriction Against Contractors Employing Convicted Sex Offenders from Working at Government of Guam Venues

ALL FORMS LISTED <u>MUST</u> BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED IN THE ENVELOPE CONTAINING THE PROPOSAL.



AFFIDAVIT DISCLOSING OWNERSHIP and COMMISSIONS

GVB RFP 2017-008

CITY)F)		
ISLAN	D OF GL	JAM) ss		
A.		ndersigned, being first do offeror and that [please cl	uly sworn, depose and say that I am neck only one]:	an authorized representative
	[]	The offeror is an individual offering business.	dual or sole proprietor and owns the	entire (100%) interest in the
	[]	The offeror is a corp	poration, partnership, joint venture	, or association known as
		venturers who have hel	offeror company], and the persons, d more than 10% of the shares or in mediately preceding the submission state]:	terest in the offering business
	NAME	_	<u>ADDRESS</u>	% of Interest
В.	or othe	r compensation for procu	TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES who have received or are entitled to ring or assisting in obtaining business	s related to the bid or proposal
		ch this affidavit is submitt	red are as follows [if none, please so	-
	NAME		<u>ADDRESS</u>	<u>Compensation</u>
С.	the tim	e an award is made or a	ousiness should change between the a contract is entered into, then I pror 233 by delivering another affidavit to	mise personally to update the
Date:_			Signature of one of the follo	wing:
			Offeror, if the offero Partner, if the offero Officer, if the bidder	or is an individual; or is a Partnership;
Subscr	ibed and	d sworn to before me this	day of,	
			Notary Public	
(AG Pro	curement F	Form 002 (Rev. Nov. 17, 2005)	My Commission Expires	



AFFIDAVIT re NON-COLLUSION GVB RFP 2017-008

CITY OF)	
ISLAND OF GUAM)	
[state sworn, deposes and says that:	e name of affiant signing below], being first duly
1. The name of the offering con	ompany or individual is [state name of company
a sham. The offeror has not colluded, co with any other offeror or person, to put offer. The offeror has not in any manne or collusion, or communication or confer offeror or of any other offeror, or to fi proposal price, or of any other offeror, or of Guam or any other offeror, or to se Guam or any person interested in the p and in the proposal are true to the be statement is made pursuant to 2 GAR D. 3. I make this statement on behalt	on identified above is genuine and not collusive or onspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly in a sham proposal or to refrain from making arear, directly or indirectly, sought by an agreement erence, with any person to fix the proposal price of fix any overhead, profit or cost element of said to secure any advantage against the government of corposed contract. All statements in this affidavitiest of the knowledge of the undersigned. This Division 4 § 312(b). All of myself as a representative of the offeror, and representatives, agents, subcontractors, and
Date:	
	Signature of one of the following: Offeror, if the offeror is an individual; Partner, if the offeror is a Partnership; Officer, if the bidder is a Corporation.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this	day of, 2017.
	Notary Public
(AG Procurement Form 003 (Rev. Jul. 12, 2010)	



AFFIDAVIT re NO GRATUITIES or KICKBACKS GVB RFP 2017-008

CITY OF
ISLAND OF GUAM)
[state name of affiant signing below], being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:
1. The name of the offering firm or individual is [state name of offeror/company]
2. To the best of affiant's knowledge, neither affiant, nor any of the offeror's officers, representatives, agents, subcontractors, or employees have violated, are violating the prohibition against gratuities and kickbacks set forth in 2 GAR Division 4 § 11107(e).
3. To the best of affiant's knowledge, neither affiant, not any of the offeror's officers representatives, agents, subcontractors, or employees have offered, given or agreed to give, any government of Guam employee or former government employee, any payment, gift, kickback gratuity or offer of employment in connection with the offeror's proposal.
4. I make these statements on behalf of myself as a representative of the offeror, and on behalf of the offeror's representative, agents, subcontractors, and employees.
Signature of one of the following: Offeror, if the offeror is an individual; Partner, if the offeror is a Partnership; Officer, if the bidder is a Corporation.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of, 2017.
Notary Public

My Commission Expires _____

(AG Procurement Form 004 (Rev. Jul. 12, 2010)



AFFIDAVIT re ETHICAL STANDARDS GVB RFP 2017-008

CITY OF)	
ISLAND OF GUAM)	SS
sworn, deposes and says that	[state name of affiant signing below], being first duly at:
identified bid or proposal. I officers, representatives, age influenced any government of forth in 5 GCA Chapter 5, Ar any officer, representative, a influence any government of	[state one of the er of the offeror, an officer of the offeror] making the foregoing to the best of affiant's knowledge, neither affiant nor any ents, subcontractors or employees or offeror have knowingly of Guam employee to breach any of the ethical standards set ticle 11. Further, affiant promises that neither he or she, nor agents, subcontractor, or employee of offeror will knowingly Guam employee to breach any ethical standards set forth in . These statements are made pursuant to 2 GAR Division 4
Subscribed and sworn to before m	Signature of one of the following: Offeror, if the offeror is an individual; Partner, if the offeror is a Partnership; Officer, if the bidder is a Corporation. ne this day of, 2017.
	Notary Public
	My Commission expires

(AG Procurement Form 005 (Rev. Jul. 12, 2010)



DECLARATION RE COMPLIANCE WITH U.S. DOL WAGE DETERMINATION

RFP N	No: <u>GVB RFP 2017-008</u>					
Name	of Offeror Company:					
	I, here	by	certifies	under	penalty	of
perju	•					
(1)	That I am offeror, an officer of the foregoing identified procurement;	e o			elect one: id proposa	
(2) read:	That I have read and understand the provision	s of	5 GCA § 5	801 and	§ 5802 wh	nich
In such propried of Guar is the d employ issued	. Wage Determination Established. th cases where the government of Guam enters in etorship, a partnership or a corporation ('contractor') for the am, and in such cases where the contractor employs a perfect delivery of service contracted by the government of yee(s) in accordance with the Wage Determination for and promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor for subtract deliverables to the Government of Guam.	ne p ersoi f Gu Gu	rovision of a n(s) whose pou nam, then the am and the	service to urpose, in contracto Northern I	the governn whole or in p r shall pay s Mariana Isla	nent part, such ands
awarde to emp renewa Determ	Tage Determination most recently issued by the U.S. Deted to a contractor by the government of Guam shall be useloyees pursuant to this Article. Should any contract coal adjustments, there shall be made stipulations containination, as required by this Article, so that the Wagtment of Labor on a date most recent to the renewal date	ed to ntained e De	o determine on a renewal of that contract that contracted in that contracted in the	wages, whi clause, the act for app	ich shall be pen at the time blying the W	paid e of age
In addit also co benefits U.S. De	2. Benefits. Ition to the Wage Determination detailed in this Article, and ontain provisions mandating health and similar benefits is having a minimum value as detailed in the Wage Detepartment of Labor, and shall contain provisions guaran num per employee.	or e	mployees co ination issue	vered by to d and pror	his Article, s nulgated by	uch the
(3) applica	That the Offeror is in full compliance with 5 able to the procurement referenced herein;	GC	CA § 5801 a	and § 580	02, as may	be be
(4)	That I have attached the most recent wage deter the U.S. Department of Labor.	min:	ation applica	able to Gu	uam issued	<mark>l by</mark>
	Signature				 Date)
(AG Proc	curement Form 006 (Rev. Feb. 16, 2010)					



AFFIDAVIT re CONTINGENT FEES GVB RFP 2017-008

CITY OF)	
) ss ISLAND OF GUAM)	
sworn, deposes and says that:	affiant signing below], being first duly
1. The name of the offering company or i	ndividual is [state name of company]
2. As a part of the offering company's bid or the offering company has not retained any per commission, or other contingent arrangement to semade pursuant to 2 GAR Division 4 11108(f).	erson or agency on a percentage,
3. As a part of the offering company's bid or the offering company has not retained a person t government of Guam upon an agreement or percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, except foona fide established commercial selling agencies This statement is made pursuant to 2 GAR Division	o solicit or secure a contract with the understanding for a commission, or retention of bona fide employees or for the purpose of securing business.
 I make these statements on behalf of my and on behalf of the offeror's officers, represer employees. 	•
Off Pa	of one of the following: eror, if the offeror is an individual. rtner, if the offeror is a partnership. icer, if the offeror is a corporation.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of	, 2017.
Notary Public My Commission exp	pires



(AG Procurement Form 007 (Rev. Jul. 15, 2010)

AFFIDAVIT

RESTRICTION AGAINST CONTRACTORS EMPLOYING CONVICTED SEX OFFENDERS FROM WORKING AT GOVERNMENT OF GUAM VENUES

GVB RFP 2017-008

CITY OF		_)		
ISLAND OF G	SUAM) ss)		
			, being first duly sw	vorn, is
	(NAME O	F PERSON)		
			ERSHIP; OR "OFFICER" IF A CORI	PORATION)
of				·
	(NAME OF OFFEROR AND	Mailing Address)	
	PHONE NUMBER)			
offeror has a RESTRICTIO	ffirms that he/she N AGAINST CON	has read and unders	tands the provisions of	t is being submitted. Said 5 GCA, CHP 5 §5253 X OFFENDERS FROM
The offeror ur	derstands that:			
(1)	offense as defined in at a minimum, all of employed by a busir	Article 2 of Chapter 28, Title 9 the elements of said offense less contracted to perform so	GCA in Guam, or an offense in es, or who is listed on the Sex	9 Guam Code Annotated, or an n any jurisdiction which includes, offender Registry, and who is umentality of the government of ther than a public highway.
Further, the	offeror represents	:		
(1)	provisions of Chapte Article 2 of Chapter 2	r 25 of Title 9 GCA or an offer	nse as defined in e in another jurisdiction with, at	cted of a sex offense under the a minimum, the same elements
(2)	of Chapter 25 of Title another jurisdiction w Registry, that such p	e 9 GCA or an offense as de ith, at a minimum, the same e erson will be immediately rer	efined in Article 2 of Chapter 2 elements as such offenses, or v	sex offense under the provisions 28, Title 9 GCA or an offense in who is listed on the Sex Offender gency and that the administrator ion.
		Signatui	re	
Subscribed and	I sworn to before me	hisday of _	, 2017.	
		Notary F My com	Public mission expires on	



FORM 1

CONTACT FOR CONTRACT NEGOTIATION

RFP NUMBER: GVB RFP 2017-008

NAME	
TITLE	
COMPANY	
MAILING ADDRESS	
TELEPHONE NUMBER	
FACSIMILE NUMBER	
EMAIL	

